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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of TYRESNMORE ONLINE PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of TyresNmore Online Private Limited (“the Company™),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025, the statement of Profit and Loss, (statement of
changes in equity) and statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the b&st of our information and according to the explanations given to us the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March,
2025 its Loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditors®
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue Recognition Audit procedures performed

The Company provides an e-commerce platform
that enables to sell the Products through its own
website and other online market places under the
E-commerce model. The Company mainly

generates revenue through Sale of these products.

We have obtained an understanding, evaluated the
design, and tested the operating effectiveness of
the general controls, automated controls and
control over systems while recording transactions
in the books of account.
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Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements
and our Auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, (changes in equity) and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
gy could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our Auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our Auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our Auditors” report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in
the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obralned all the information and explanations which o the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books adequate for the purposes of our audit.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015.

¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirement of section197(16) of the Act as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has not paid
remuneration to its directors during the year.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
Information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its Financial Statements refer note no.29.
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.
iii. There are no amounts which are required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.xz
iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advance or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other source
or kind of fund) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign
entity (‘Intermediaries’),with the understanding whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“ Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received
by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding
Parties”),with the Understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly ,lend or invest in other person or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by oron  behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries:

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representation under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of the Rule 11 (e), as provided under
(a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not proposed dividend in the previous year, in accordance with section
123 of the Act, as applicable.
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vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, we did
not come across with any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with during
the course of our audit.The back-up of audit trail (edit log) has been maintained on the
servers physically located in India for financial year ended 31 March, 2025.

For V.S. SOMANI and Co.,
Chartered Accountants

Place: Mumbai Proprietor
Date: 22 April, 2025 MembershipNo.102664

UDIN: 25102664BMITEK 7926
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The Annexure A referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on
the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 we report that:

1. (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible assets.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has conducted physical verification of all its
fixed assets of its property, plant, and equipment. In this verification there was no material
discrepancies were notice.

(¢) The Company does not have any immovable properties hence reporting under clause (i)(B)(c)
is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, plant and equipment (including Right-of-use
assets) or Intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) No proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property
under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder

ii. (a) Physical verification of the inventory has been conducted during the year by the
Management. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification is appropriate;
No discrepancies of 10% or more in physical verification of inventory were reported by them.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits at any point of time of the
year from Banks and Financial Institutions hence reporting under this clause is not applicable

to the Company.

iii.  The Company has not made any investments or provided any guarantee or security or granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Hence reporting under clause iii (a) to (f) is not
applicable.

iv.  The Company has not given any loans, guarantees, and securities and invested any amount. Hence
reporting under these clauses related with provisions of Section 185 and 186 of The Act are not

applicable.

v.  The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Hence the directions issued by Reserve Bank of India in relation to sections 73 to 76
or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder are not

applicable.

vi.  The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government prescribed
under sub-section 1 of section 148 of the Act, for business activities carried out by the Company.
Woerefore the Provisions of Clause (vi) of Order is not applicable to the Company;




V. S. Somani & Co.

Chartered Accountants

vii.  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion,

(a) The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services
Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate
authorities
Further no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employee state insurance,
income tax, sales tax, service tax, GST, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and
any other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2025 for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to Provident Fund, Employees
State Insurance, or Cess or other statutory dues, which have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute. The following dues of Excise duty, income tax
and Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 have not been deposited by the Company
on account of dispute:

Name of | Nature of | Amount (Rs. | Period to which the | Forum where dispute
the statute | Dues In Lacs) amount relates is pending
Goods and | Tax 1.70 Commissioner of
Service Tax | Interest 1.89 2017-18 Goods and Service tax
Act, 2017 Penalty 0.20 (Appeals)
viii.  During the year, there are no transactions recorded in the books of account which have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961.
iX. (a) During the year, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or

in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) During the year, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or any other lender.

(c) The Company has availed term loan from the bank and it has been applied for the purpose
for which it has been sanctioned.

(d) During the year, no funds raised on short term basis by the Company,

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Hence reporting
under clause ix (e) and (f) of the Order is not applicable.

X. (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x) (a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully
or partly convertible debentures during the year under review.

(a) As per information and explanation given to us no fraud by the Company and on the Company
has been noticed by the management and reported to us. Hence reporting under clause 3 xi (a)
and (h) is not applicahle
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(b) As represented to us by the management, there were no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year.

xii.  In our opinion the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly reporting under clause
3(xii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable

xiii.  As per information and explanation given to us all transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act and the details have been disclosed in
notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv.  The Company does not have an internal audit system, hence reporting under clause (b) is
not applicable.

xv.  The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected
to its directors, and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

xvi.  (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi) (a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi) (b) of the Order is not applicable.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi) (¢) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank directions,2016 as amended), Accordingly, the requirements of
Clause 3(xvi) (d) of the Order is not applicable.

xvii.  The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs.13.63 Crores in the current and Rs. 11.49 Crores in
the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii.  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. According, reporting
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

Xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based
on the facts up to the date of audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
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XX. (a) The Company does not require to transfer an amount in compliance with the provisions under
section 135 of the Act. Hence reporting in sub clause (b) is not applicable to the Company.

For V.S.SOMANI and Co.,
Chartered Accountants

Vidyatlhar Somani
Place: Mumbai Proprietor
Date: April 22, 2025 MembershipNo.102664

UDIN: 25102664BMITEK7926
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Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Act

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Tyres N more Online Private
Limited. (“The Company”) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(‘ICAI’).These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the Auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
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provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In Gur opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations give to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31
March 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For V.S.SOMANI and Co.,
Chartered Accountants
F.R.No.117589W

- .

Vidyadhar Somani

Place: Mumbai Proprietor

Date: April 22, 2025 MembershipNo. 102664
UDIN: 25102664BMITEK 7926
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TYRESNMORE ONLINE PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U25119DL2014PTC267768
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

TREN222

(Tinth ds)
As at As at
Particulars Note March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Audited Audited
| Assets
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 8,502 9,255
(b) Capital work-in-progress 3 - -
(¢) Right-of-use asset - -
(d) Intangible assets 4 1,234 2,795
(e) Intangible assets under development 4 209 2089
(f} Financial assets - -
(i) Investments -
(ii) Other financial assets - -
{g) Non-current tax assets (net) = -
() Other non-current assets 5 - 11
(i) Deferred tax Asset 18 1,310 788
Total non-current assets ( 1) 11,255 13,058
{2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 6 13,779 11,904
(b} Financial assets - -
(i) Trade receivables 7 8,162 6,121
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 8 6,966 35,560
(iii) Bank balances other than (Ii) above - -
(iv) Other financial assets 9 6,720 6,997
{c) Other current assets 10 15,889 12,562
Total current assets {2) 51,517 73,143
Total assets [(1) +(2)] 62,772 86,201
Il Equlty And Liabilitles
(1) Equity
(a) Equity share capital 11 463 389
(b) Other equity 12 2,187 51,715
Total equity (1) 2,850 52,104
(2) Non-current Labllities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 384 -
(ii) Lease liabilities - -
{iii) Other financial liabilities -
(b) Provisions 14 8,886 6,287
(c) Deferred tax liabilities - E
Total non-current llabilities (2) 9,271 6,287
(3) Current Uabltitles
(a) Financial liabilities
(i} Borrowings 13 157
(i) Lease liabilities - -
(iif) Trade payables 15
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,491 -
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 34,754 24,798
(iv) Other financial liabilities 16 11,822 1,231
(b) Other current tiabilities 17 1,765 1,359
(c] Provisions 14 864 421
{d) Current tax liabilities - -
Total current liabillties (3) 50,852 27,809
Total equity and liabilities [{1)+(2)+(3)) 62,772 86,201
Significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are anintegral part of the financial statements.

As per our report attached
ForV.s. Soman| & Co.,

Membership No. 102664
Place : Mumbai
Date: 22nd April 2025

M. Nc. 102664
FRN: 117589
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Tyresnmore Online Private Limited

Kunjan Ravindranath Chikhlikar

Director

DIN: 03559274
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It SurestiTolani

Director
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TYRESNMORE ONLINE PRIVATE LIMITED B
CIN:U25119DL2014PTC267768 WRBNMQ
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

(% In thousands)

Particulars Note 2024-25 2023-24
Revenue from operations 19 3,22,573 2,556,864
Otherincome 20 » 815 502
| |Totalincome 3,23,389 2,56,366
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed - =
Purchases of stock-in-trade 21 2,76,250 2,19,014
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress 22 (1,875) (4,940)
Employee benefit expense 23 88,429 67,316
Finance costs 24 384 240
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 25 2,893 3,308
Other expenses 26 97,178 89,134
1l |Totalexpenses 4,63,259 3,74,071
Il |Profit before exceptional Items and tax (1,39,870) (1,17,705)
IV |Exceptional items 5
V  |Profit before tax {1,39,870) {1,17,705)
Vi |Taxexpense
Current tax - -
Deferred tax {522) 519
VIl |Loss forthe year (1,39,348) (1,18,224)
Vil |Other Comprehensive Income
(a) Items that will not be reclassifled to profit or loss
(i) Remeasurements gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans (405) (6086)
(i) Income tax relating to above (7)
(b) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Effective portion of gains (losses) on hedging instruments in cash flow hedges
(i) Income tax relating to above
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year (405) (613)
x Total Comprehensive Income for the year (Comprising profit and other
comprehensive income / (loss) for the year) (1,39,753) {(1,18,837)
X |Earnings per equity share (of face value of ¥ 1 each) 27
(a) Basic (inT) (300.87) (303.78)
(b) Dituted (In %) (327.40) (848.05)
Significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report attached

ForV.S. Somani & Co., For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Tyresnmore

ch A Imi
artered Accountants For Tyresnmore Online Privaf® e ™ For Tyresnmore Online kPriyatf,Limited
7

ICAI FR’N -117588W /
’ O N
/ (WW% Director \jk‘% N

i i Director
CAVidyadhar Somani Kunjan Ravindranath Chikhlikar Amit Suresh Tolanf

Properitor Director Director

Membership No. 102664 DIN: 03559274 DIN: 08679764

Place : Mumbai
Date: 22nd April 2025
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) TYRESNMORE ONLINE PRIVATE LIMTED
CIN : U25119DL2014PTC267768

Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2025

\ {%in
¥ |Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
| |CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
]
= Proflt/Loss before tax (1,39,870) (1,17,705)
AdJustments to reconclle profit before tax to net cash flows:
: Depreciation and amartization expenses 2,893 3,308
Interestincome (810)
Finance costs 34
D {Profit) / Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment {net) 248
Remeasurement gain / {loss) on defined benefit plans 405 (6086)
,’ Operating protit before working capital changes (1,36,749) (1,15,004)
Adjustments for:
PY Decrease/ {Increase) in inventories {1,875) {4,940}
! Decrease/ (Increase) In trade recelvables {2,042) {2,909)
Decrease/ {Increase) in other current assets (3,328) {5,987)
_” Decrease/ (Increase) in other current financial assets 178 {3,450}
Decrease / {Increase) in other non current assets 11 (11)
’ (Decrease) / Increase in trade payables 11,446 (1,650}
= {Decrease}/ Increase in current financial liabilites and other current liabilities 10,997 (64,291}
(Decrease) / Increase in current provisions 442 125
) (Decrease) / Increase in non-current provisions 2,599 2,656
Cash flows from operating activities {1,18,320) {(1,95,461)
e Income taxes {paid) / refund {99) {50}
J Net cash flow generated from operating activities {I) (1,18,419) {1,95,511)
} Il |CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (including capital work-in progress, {1,512) (3,383)
intangible assets under development and capltal advance)
j Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 108 -
Interest received b 776 -
Net cash flow {used in} investing activities (1l} (630) {3,383)
1l |CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of equity capital {including share premium) 90,299 2,27,997
-
Interest paid (384) -
Proceeds / {repayment) of current borrowings 157 (410)
Proceeds/ Repayment of non-current borrowings 384 (283)
Dividend paid {0)
J Net cash flows (used In)/ generated from financing activitles {111} 90,456 2,27,304
| Netincrease / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1+ 11+ 111} (28,593) 28,410
vlj Cash and cash equivalents at the begil of the year 35,560 7,143
I_ Cash and cash equlvalents at the end of the year 6,966 35,560
ﬁ The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
*  Asper our report attached
For Tyresnmor s Limited 3
D ForV.s. Somani & Co., y Furarﬁ nghgr!:lﬂs ai:ﬂ !I%llr%c!%lglﬂl%ﬁt%nmorn Online FWnTyre snmore Online ate Limitec
Chartered Accountants Limited ) ~ J
.3 ICAI FAN.2117589W ’ ] \V J
Mo SNV Director \j‘ , Director
S - L :
CA Uldy:!sfmrsﬁmfarr Kunjan Ravindranath Chikhlikar Amit Suresh Tolan|
Membership No. 102664 Director Director
Place : Mumbai DIN: 03559274 DIN: 08679764

Date: 22nd April 2025
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TYRESNMORE ONLINE PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN : U25119DL2014PTC267768

statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31,2025 ,

A. Equity Share Capital

(% In thousands)

Particulars

Amount

As at April01, 2023
Changes in the equity share capital

109
280

As at March 31, 2024

389

Fresh allottment during the year*

74

As at March 31,2025

463

*The Company had allotted 73,979 Equity Shares during the current financial year FY 2024-2025.

B.Other Equity

(% in thousands)

Item of Other
Reserves & Surplus Comprehensive
Income {OCI)
Particulars Other Equity (Refer
Capltal NotelZ)
Securltles premium Capltal Reserve T T Retalned earnings Eftective portion of
(Refer Note 12 a) {Refer Note 12 b) cash flow hedges
reserve
As at April 01,2023 4,02,901 (2,32,349) 1,70,552
Tax income/(expense) on opening balances of transferor - . - - -
company
Profit for the year - - - (1,18,224) (1,18,224)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) - - - (613) (613)
Total comprehenslve Income - - - (1,18,837) (1,18,837)
Payment of dividend on 0.801% Compulsary - - - - (0) - (0)
Convertible Preference Shares
As atMarch 31, 2024 4,02,901 - - - (3,51,186) - 51,715
Profit for the year - - - - (1,39,348) - (1,39,348)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) - - - - {405} - (405)
Total comprehensive Income - - - - (1,39,753) - (1,39,753)
Fremium on share Issue duting the year 90,225 90,225
As at March 31, 2025 4,93,126 - - - (4,90,939) - 2,187

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report attached

For V.S. Somani & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
ICAI ERN - 11Y589W

! b o
5 S22k kad
s
-
CA Vidyadiyar Somanl
Properitor

Membership No. 102664
Place : Mumbai
Date: 22nd April 2025

For Ty resn QLS ngﬁ]@ poderDRedtsR bt tyre snmoiﬁgélfnﬂiyétéki
KompandC
P Director

Kunjan Ravindranath Chikhlikar
Director
DIN: 03559274

ted =
fiMiore Umuu: Fliyer o

\ G }V’

\7* ;

AmitSuresh Tolanl Director
Director
DIN: 08679764
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TYRESNMORE ONLINE PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : U25119DL2014PTC267768
S-40, First & Second Floor, Janta Market, Rajouri Garden, New Delhi 110027

Notes to Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025

Note 1: Corporate Information

TyresNmore Online Private Limited (“the Company”) has been incorporated under Companies Act, 2013
vide incorporation No U25119DL2014PTC267768, dated June 02, 2014 as a Private Limited Company.
During the pervious year the erstwhile shareholders transferred shareholdings to the CEAT Limited which
is Public Limited Company, hence the company is a Deemed Public Limited Company. The registered
office of the Company is located at S-40 First & Second Floor, Janta Market, Rajouri Garden New Delhi-
110027. The standalone financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution

passed by Board of Directors on April 21, 2025. The company is into the business of buying and selling

tyres, tubes, flaps and vehicle batteries.
2.1.1: Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements:

The financial statements of the Company has been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting

Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and presentation requirements of Division Il of

Schedule Il of the Companies Act 2013 (Ind AS compliant Schedule Ili).

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting
policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the consolidated financial statements.
The consolidated financial statements are presented in “3”, the functional currency of the company.

Items included in the financial statements of the company are recorded using the currency of the primary

economic environment in which the TyresNmore Online Private Limited operates (the ‘functional
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2.2 Current vs. Non-Current Classification:

The Company presents assets and liabilities in balance sheet based on current/non-current
classification. ’
An asset s classified as current when it is:
i Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed, in normal operating cycle, or
iil.  Held primarily for the purpose of trading, or
jil. Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
iv. " Acash orcash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is classified as current when:
i. itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, or
il. Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading, or
jii. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

v There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months

after the reporting period.
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.The operating cycle
is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing/servicing and their realisation in cash and

cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.
2.3:Revenue recognition:

2.3.1 Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company earns revenue through offering products on its own website, www.tyresnmore.com and
other online marketplaces or through offline distribution channels or to other businesses.

Under e-commerce model, where products are sold through online channels, the revenue is recognised

while the products are shipped to the Customer. The products are shipped simultaneously through

rtners or by the Company, on case-to-case basis.

Page 6 of 46
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Similarly, in case of sales made to the businesses or distributor partners, offline model, the invoice is
prepared at the time of shipping of products and the revenue is recognised at the same stage. Thus, the
control of the goods are transferred to the Customer at the time of shipment and generation of invoice,

s

even though the payment is received, ata later stage.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price

(net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation.

The transaction price of goods sold, and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account of
discounts offered by the Company as part of the contract. This variable consideration is estimated based
on the expected value of outflow. Revenue (net of variable consideration) is recognised only to the extent

that it is highly probable that the amount will not be subject to significant reversal when uncertainty

relating to its recognition is resolved.

The Company identifies the performance obligations in its contracts with customers and recognises
revenue as and when the performance obligations are satisfied i.e. where goods are identified and closed
for delivery (online) or where the goods are actually shipped (offline). The specific recognition criteria

described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

2.3.2 (A) Sale of products:

In case only product is being sold then the revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised
products to customerinan amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expects toreceive
in exchange for products. Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the
consideration, adjusted for discounts, rebates, scheme allowances, price concessions, incentives, and

returns, if any, as specified in the Contracts with the customers. Revenue excludes taxes collected from

customers on behalf of the government.

2.3.2 (B) Sale of products and services:

In case of composite supply where the products and services are clubbed, the revenue is recognised
upon transfer of control of promised products to customer in an amount that reflects the consideration
which the Company expects to receive in exchange for products. Revenue is measured based on the

transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for fitment cost, discounts, rebates, scheme

ances, price concessions, incentives, and returns, if any, as specified in the Contracts with the

s. Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers on behalf of the government.
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2.3.3 Rendering of services:

Revenue is recognised when the services are delivered to the satisfaction of the Customer. However, any

services which is incidental to the sale of products and is clubbed with the product are recognised at the

time of sale of products as per point 2.3.2.
2.3.4 Otherincome

Interestincome

Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss and is accounted on

proportionate basis.

Dividends

Dividend is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is

generally, when shareholders approve the dividend.
2.5: Taxes

2.5.1 Current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are

enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in India where the Company operates and

generates taxable income.

Current tax relating to items recognised outside the statement of profit and loss is either in Other
Comprehensive Income (‘OCI’) or in equity.

Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in the statement of
profitand loss or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes

provisions where appropriate.

Interest expenses and penalties, if any, related to income tax are included in finance cost and other

expenses respectively.
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Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the amount and
timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of business relationships and the long-term nature
and complexity of existing contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual results and
the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to
tax income and expense already recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable
estimates, for possible consequences of audits by the tax authorities of the respective countries in which
it operates. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous
tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax
authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the

conditions prevailing in the Company’s domicile.

2.5.2 Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and

liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit and loss.

o In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in joint ventures when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial

recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the

Page 9 of 46
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e In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent
thatitis probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable

profit will be available against which the temporary dfﬁerences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
thatitis no longer probable that sufficient taxable profitwill be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extentthat it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been

enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the statement of profit and Loss is recognised either in
OCl or in equity. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in

OCl or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity

and the same taxation authority.

2.5.3 GST paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST paid, except:
e When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset
oras part of the expense item, as applicable.

» When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of

Page 10 of 46
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2.6 : Property plant and equipment

Anitemis recognised as an asset, if and only if, it is probable that the future economic benefits associated

with the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably.

Property plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. The initial cost of Property plant and equipment comprises purchase price
(including non-refundable duties and taxes but excluding any trade discounts and rebates), borrowing
costs if-capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working

condition for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as separate assets, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that the future economic henefits associated with expenditure will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance

are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss at the time of incurrence.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised

upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of Property plant and equipment are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assetand are recognized in
the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation on property, piant and equipmeit is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates
arrived at based on the useful lives estimated by the management which are in line with the useful lives

prescribed in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has used the following useful lives to provide depreciation on its fixed assets the identified

components are depreciated over their useful lives, the remaining asset is depreciated over the of the
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Asset Class Useful life
Plant & Machinery 15 years
Office Equipment’s 5years
Motor vehicles 8yearsi
Motor Cycle , Scooter 10 years
Furniture & Fixtures 10 years
Electrical Installations 10 years

The useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of Property plant and equipment are reviewed,
and adjusted appropriately, at-least as at each reporting date so as to ensure that the method and period
of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from these assets. The
effects of any change in the estimated useful lives, residual values and / or depreciation method are
accounted prospectively, and accordingly the depreciation is calculated over the Property plant and

equipment remaining revised useful life.
2.7:Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated

impairment losses.

Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the
related expenditure is reflected in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is

incurred.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or infinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected usefut life or the expected pattern of
onsumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the

iRation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
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amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and

loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

intangible assets with infinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually,
either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of infinite life is reviewed annually
to determine whether the infinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from

infinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of

profit or loss when the asset s derecognised. Intangible assets are amortised on straight line method as

under:

o Software & website expenditure have been amortised over a period of three years.

.2.8: Leases

The determination of whether én arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right
to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

For arrangements entered into prior to April 1, 2015, the Company has determined whether the

arrangement contain lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition.

2.9: Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower cost and net realisable value.

Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Costincludes cost of purchase

and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost

is determined on a weighted average basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling prices in the ordina

costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. An inventory pro

ry course of business, less estimated

vision is
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recognised for cases where the net realisable value is estimated to be lower than the inventory carrying
value. The net realisable value is estimated taking into account various factors, including obsolescence
of material due to design change, process change etc., unserviceable items i.e. items which cannot be
used due to deterioration in quality or due to shelf life or ddmaged in storage and ageing of material i.e.

slow moving/non-moving prevailing sales.
2.10: Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changesinvalue.

Forthe purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of

the Company’s cash management.

2.11: Financial assets
Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument.

2.11.1: Initial recognition and measurement

On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognised at fair value. In case of financial assets which are
recognised at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) except for trade receivables without financing
component which are measured at transaction price, its transaction cost is recognised in the Statement
of Profitand Loss. in other cases, the transaction cost s attributed to the acquisitionvalue of the financial

asset.

2.11.2 Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
e Debtinstruments at amortised cost
° Debtinstruments at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (‘FVTOCP)

e Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

PL’) Equity instruments measured at FVTOC!
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2.11.3 Debt instruments at amortised cost a debt instrument is measured at the amortised cost if

both the following conditions are met:

e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows; and
e Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely Payments

of Principal and Interest (‘SPPI’) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
EIR method. Amortised cost s calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement

of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies to other receivables, loans and other financial assets.

2.11.4: Debt instrument at FVTOCI
A debt instrument is classified as at FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

e The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets; and

e The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting
date at fair value. Fair value moveiments are recognised in the OCi. However, the Company recognises
inferest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is
reclassified from the equity to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest earned whiltst holding FVTOCI

debtinstrumentis reported as interest income using the EIR method.
2.11.5: Debt instrument at FVTPL

TPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria

orisation as amortised cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as FVTPL.
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> In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortised
< cost or FVTOCI criteria, as FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates

a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has

-l
-
A not designated any debt instrument as FVTPL.
- Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
» recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
s )
2.11.6: Equity instruments
2
S All investments in equity instruments within the scope of Ind AS 109 are initially measured at fair value.
D Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the
) Company may make an irrevocable election to present in the OCI subsequent changes in the fair value.
2 The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on
initial recognition and is irrevocable.
>
3 In case of equity instrument classified as FVTOC], all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding
) dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OClI to the Statement of
3 Profit and Loss, even on derecognition of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative
gain or loss within equity.
3
5/ Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
) recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
3
2.11.7: Derecognition
D
= A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
b assets) is primarily derecognised when:
2
3 e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
e The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
? obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
2 ss-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially allthe risks
2
2
)
..; Page 16 of 46
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and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially

all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that

reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the

lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the

Company could be required to repay.
2.11.8: Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (‘ECL’) model for

measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk

exposure:

i Trade receivables
ii. Financial assets measured at amortised cost (other than trade receivables)

jif. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in

credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance pased on lifetime ECLs at each reporting

date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on otherfinancial assets[i.e. (ii) and (i) above] and risk exposure, the
Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial

recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, twelve-month ECL is used to provide for
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subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss

allowance based on twelve-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The twelve-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from

default events that are possible within twelve-months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted

at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

o All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and
similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when
the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is
required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument.

e Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the

contractual terms.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance
on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based onits historically observed default rates
over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
updated. For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial
instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis

thatis designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income /
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in

the Statement of Profit and Loss.

lance Sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:
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* Financial assets measured at amortised cost and contractual revenue receivables: ECL is
presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the
Balance Sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off

criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, i.e., financial

assets which are credit impaired on purchase / origination.
2.12: Financial liabilities

2.12.1: Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case of borrowings

net of directly attributable transaction costs.

2.12.2: Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

2.12.3: Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated uponinitial recognition as at FVTPL. Financial liabilities are classified as held fortradingif they
are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative

financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in

hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition at FVTPL are designated as such at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fairvalue
gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risks are recognised in OCI. These gains / loss are not
subsequently transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss. However, the Company may transfer the

lative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the

Page 19 of 46




QDO OVVOVUOWOULLUVLULUULUGLLELGGGULEELELGOLGLGGL LY

2.12.4: Financial liabilities at amortised cost

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation

process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the

Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.12.5: Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be
made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are
recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of
loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised

less cumulative amortisation.
2.12.6: Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.

The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
2.13: Contingent liabilities and assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within

the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that

an outftow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
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reliably. The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial

statements.

A contingent assets is not recognised unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic
benefits will arise. When an inflow of economic benefits is probable, contingent assets are disclosed in
the financial statements. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet

date
2.14: Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require an adjustment to the carrying amount
of assets or liabilities in future periods. Difference between actual results and estimates are recognised

in the periods in which the results are known / materialised.

The key assumptions concernihg the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company has based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are

reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies, as well as estimates and
assumptions that have the most significant effect to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within

the next financial year, are included in the following notes:

a) Measurement of defined benefit obligations -note__1.2

b) Measurement and likelihood of occurrence of provisions and contingencies
¢) Recognition of current tax and deferred tax assets _

Key assumptions used in fair valuations

easurement of lease liabilities and right-of-use asset

>
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2.15: Earnings Per Share (‘EPS’)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for thre year attributable to equity holders of the

Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
after adjusting impact of dilution shares by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding

during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of

all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

2.16: Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result -

of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain.

The expense relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of any
reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a
current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is

used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

2.16.1 Sales related obligations

The estimated liability for sales related obligations is recorded when products are sold. These estimates
are established using historical information on the nature, frequency and average cost of obligations and
management estimates regarding possible future incidence based on corrective actions on product
failure. The timing of outflows will vary as and when the obligation will arise - being typically up to three

years. Initial recognition is based on historical experience. The initial estimate of sales related obligations

ed costs) is revised annually.
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2.17: Employee Benefits

2.17.1: Defined contribution plan

Retirement benefitin the form of Provident Fund and Employe’es State Insurance Contribution are defined
contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the above
mentioned funds. The Company recognises contribution payable to these funds / schemes as an expense
when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the Balance Sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable is
recognised as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid
exceeds the contribution due for services received before the Balance Sheet date, then excess is

recognised as an asset to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future

payment or a cash refund.

2.17.2: Defined benefit plan

For defined benefit plans, the amount recognised as ‘Employee benefit expenses’ in the Statement of
Profit and Loss is the cost of accruing employee benefits promised to employees over the year and the
costs of individual events such as past / future service benefit changes and settlements (such events are
recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss). The amount of net interest expense
calculated by applying the liability discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset is charged or
credited to ‘Finance costs’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Any differences between the expected
interest income on plan assets and the return achieved, and any changes in the liabilities over the year
due to changes in actuarial assumptions or experience adjustments within the plans, are recognised

immediately in OCl and subsequently not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The defined benefit plan surplus or deficit on the Balance Sheet date comprises fair value of plan assets
less the present value of the defined benefit liabilities using a discount rate by reference to market yields
on Government bonds at the end of the reporting period.

All defined benefit plans obligations are determined based on valuations, as at the Balance Sheet date,
made by independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The classification ofthe Company’s

net obligation into current and noncurrent is as per the actuarial valuation report.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that
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recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company recoghises gains and losses on the settlement of

a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

2.17.3: Termination benefits y
Termination benefits, in the nature of voluntary retirement benefits or termination benefits arising from
restructuring, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates:

e When the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; or
e When the Company recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of Ind AS 37:
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and involves the payment of termination

benefits.

Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to their

present value.

2.18 Restricted Stock Units (RSU)

The Company has been recognizing the compensation expenses relating to RSU Share based on
estimated payment in statement of profit and loss estimated on fair values of awards and is recognized
as an expense in the statement of profitandloss, on a straight-line basis, over the requisite service period
for each separately vesting portion of the award, as if the award was in substance with a corresponding
increase to share option outstanding account.

However, subsequent to change in control that qualifiesas a trigger event for liquidation, on request from
the grantee, the Company mutually agreed to redeerm and cancel awarded RSU and decided to revoke

the existing Plan.

2.19 Contingent liability and contingent assets

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non—occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Entity or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability atso arises in extremely
rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably.

The Entity does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements
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TYRESNMORE ONLINE PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN : U25119DL2014PTC267768

Notes to financial statements for year ended March 31,2025

Note 3; Property, plant and equipmentand Capital work-in-progress

Refer note 2.6 for at ing policy on Property, plant and equipment and Capital work-in-progress

(T in thousands)

Plant and
h Furniture and Office
Particulars Equipment Eiras Vehicles e Total
(Owned)
Gross carrying amount / Deemed Cost
As at April 01,2023 8,752 166 6,715 1,311 16,944
Additions 648 106 56 274 1,084
Disposals - - - - -
C \ised e - . 3 4
As at March 31, 2024 9,400 272 6,771 1,585 18,029
Addilions 762 15 550 185 1,512
Disposals/ Adjustments (1,924) (44) (786) (49) (2,803)
Capitalised - - E - -
As at March 31, 2025 8,238 243 6,535 1,721 16,738
Accumulated Depreciation
As at April 01, 2023 3,288 42 3,285 524 7,139
Depreciation for the year 582 18 782 244 1,635
Disposals + - - - -
As at March 31, 2025 3,879 60 4,066 768 8,773
Depreciation for the year 500 11 469 351 1,332
Disposals/ Adj i (1,650) - (220) - {1,870)
As at March 31, 2025 2,730 71 4,315 1,119 8,236
Net Book Value:
As at March 31, 2024 5,521 212 2,705 817 9,255
As at March 31, 2025 5,508 172 2,220 602 8,502

Refer Note 13 for details on hypothecation of the assets.

Net carrying amount

(% in thousands)

Asat
Particulars - March 31,
March 31, 2025 2024
Property, plant and equipment 8,502 9,255
Capital work in progress = =
Note 4: Intangible assets
Refer note 2.7 for &t g policyon ibles assets (¥ In thousands)
Intangible
Particulars Website assets under Total

dGevelopment
Gross carrying amount / Deemed Cost
As at April 01, 2023 4,117 - 4,117
Additions 2,090 209 2,299
Disposal = -]
GCapitalised » - -
As at March 31, 2024 6,207 209 6,415
Additions - - 3
Disposal - - -
Capitalised - - =
As at Mar 31, 2025 6,207 209 6,415
Accumulated amortization
As at April 01, 2023 1,739 - 1,739
Amortisation for the year 1,673 - 1,673
Disposal - .
As at March 31, 2024 3,412 - 3,412
Amortlsation for the year 1,561 - 1,561
Disposals/ Adjustments - - £
As at March 31, 2025 4,973 - 4,973
Net Book Value:
As at March 31, 2024 2,795 209 3,003
Asal 5 1,234 209 1,443
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Notes to financial statements for year ended 31, March 2025
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Note 5: Other non-current assets

Refer note 2.2 for accounting policy on Other Non Current Assets

(X in thousands)

Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Unsecured, considered good

Capital advances = 1

Total - 11

Note 6: Inventories

Refer note 2.9 for accounting policy on Inventories (T in thousands)

Asat As at

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Stock-in - trade 13,779 11,904
Total 13,779 11,904
Note 7: Trade receivables
(X in thousands)
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade receivables from others 8,162 6,121
Trade receivables from related parties - -
Totalrecelvables 8,162 6,121
(X in thousands)
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Break-up for security details
Secured, considered good

Unsecured, considered good 8,162 6,121
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Trade Receivables - creditimpaired 947 811
9,109 6,932
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (947) (811)
Total 8,162 6,121
(% in thousands)
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

The movement in altowance for doubtful debts Is as follows:

Balance as at beginning of the year 811 -
Change in allowance for doubtful debts 135 811
Trade receivables written off during the year . =
Balance as at end of the year 947 811

oM

¢o

As at March 31, 2025

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Lessthan 6 | 6 months-1 More than 3 Total

1-2years | 2-3years

months year vears
Undisputed-considered gocd 7.886 - 277 - - 8,162
Undisputed-considered doubtful - - - - - -
Disputed-considered good - - - - # .
Disputed-considered doubtful - - - - 847 947

Total Trade Recelvables 7,886 - 277 - 947 9,109

As at March 31, 2024

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 6 | 6 months-1 More than 3 Total

1-2years | 2-3 years

months year years
Undisputed-considered good 5,568 547 5 - - 6,121
Undisputed-considered doubtful = = - = = -
Disputed-considered good - - - = - -
Disputed-considered doubtful - - - - 811 811
':?T;?QgplTrade Receivables 5,568 s47 s - 811 6,932
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TYRESNMORE ONLINE PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for year ended 31, March 2025

Note 8: Cash and cash equivalents

Refer note 2.10 for accounting policy on Cash and cash equivalents

(Z in thousands)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

Asat
March 31, 2024

Batances with Banks

On current accounts 4,662 8,052

On Deposit accounts 2,200 27,200

Cash on hand 105 308

Cash and cash equivalent as per statement of cash flow 6,966 35,560

Note 9: Other financial assets

Refer note 2.11 for accounting policy on Other financial assets (% in thousands)
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Current
Unsecured, considered good

Other receivables 6,720 6,997
Total 6,720 6,997
Note 10; Other current assets
Refer note 2.2 for accounting policy on Other Current Assets (% in thousands)
Particulars Asat .
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Unsecured, considered good
Balance with government authorities 14,933 11,591
Advance to employees - 2
spaid Fxpense 956 969
15,889 12,562
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TYRESNMORE ONLINE PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for year ended 31 March, 2025

Note 11; Equity share capital

Equity shares (Face value ¥ 1) Preference Shares [Face value X 1)
Authorised share capltal

Numbers {(Xint {XIn )
At April 01,2023 5,00,000 500 5,00,000 SO0
Changes during the year . - - -
At March 31,2024 5,00,000 500 5,00,000 500
Changes during the year 5,00,000 500
At March 31, 2025 10,00,000 1,004 5,00,000 500
1ssued share capital
Equity shares of ¥ 1 each Issued

{XIn ) Humb Xln
At Aprit 01, 2023 1,08,737 109 1,07,797 108
Alloted during the year 2,80,437 280 59,582 60
Conversion - - {1,67,379) {167}
At March 31, 2024 3,89,174 389 - -
Fresh allottment during the year 73,979 74
Conversion
At March 31, 2025 4,63,153 463 - -
Subscribed and Pald-up share capital
Equity and 0.001% Compulsorlly Convertible Preference Shares of ¥1 each subscribed and fully pald
{XInth ) &In

At April 01, 2023 1,08,737 109 1,07,797 108
Alloted during the year 2,80,437 280 59,582 80
Conversion - - (1,67,379) {167}
At March 31, 2024 3,89,174 389 - -
Fresh allottment during the year 73,979 74 - -
Conversion - - G
At March 31, 2025 4,63,153 463 - -

a) The Company had allotted 73,979 (Previous year 2,80,437) Equity Shares during the current financial year FY 25,
b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having face value of X 1pershare.

In the event of winding-up, the holders of equlty shares shall be entltled to recelve remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferentlal amounts. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by shareholders.

The shareholders have all other rights as avallable to equity shareholders as pet the provision of the Companles Act 2013, applicable In India read together with the
Memorandum of Assaciation and Arlicles of Association of the Company, as applicable.

c) Detalls of shareholders holding more than 5% shares In the company

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Name of the shareholders Numbers % holding In the Numbers % hotding In the
class class

Equity shares of ¥ 1 each fully paid
CEAT Limited 4,863,187 100.00% 3,89,165 100.00%

CEAT Limited with Amit Tolani 2 0.00% 1 0.00%
CEAT Limited with Sanjay Bhatia * 2 0.00% 1 0.00%
CEAT Limited with Kurnat Shah * 2 0.00% 1 0.00%
CEAT Limited with Meena Marar * 2 0.00% 1 0.00%
CEAT Limited with Mehul Maheshwari * 2 0.00% 1 0.00%
CEAT Limited with Kurian Joseph*® L} 0.00% 4 0.00%
* During reported financial year, CEAT Limited acquired 100% holding from other hil bers of the Company. As part of regulatory requirement, 06 other
bers where made reg d holders, while CEAT Limited remains the beneficial owner of the ail Equity Shares.

d) As per the records of the Company as at March 31, 2024 no calls remaln unpaid by the directors and officers of the Company.
e} The Company has not Issued any equlty shares as bonus for conslderation other than cash and has not bought back any shares during the perlod of 5 years Immedlately
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TYRESNMORE ONLINE PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for year ended 31 March, 2025

g) Detalls of shares held by promoter As At March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Promoter Name No, of shares % of Total Shares % Change during No. of shares % of Total Shares % Change
the year during the year

Promoter
CEAT Limited 483 100% 0% 389 100% 100%
Total 463 100% 0% 389 100% 100%
Note 12: Other equity &in )
Partlculars LU —

Mar 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Securities premium (refer footnote a) 4,93,126 4,02,901
Retained earnings (refer footnote b) (4,90,939) (3,51,186)
Total other equity 2,187 51,715

Refer Statement of Changes in Equity
a) Securitles premlum
Amount recelved on issue of shares In excess of the par value has been classifled as securlty share premlum.
(% In thousands)

AtMarch 31, 2024 4,02,801
Add; Durlng the year 90,225
At March 31, 2025 4,93,126

b) Retalned earnlngs
Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to reserves, dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders.

At March 31, 2023 (2,32,349)
Prafit for the year {1,18,224)
Other comprehensive Income {613)
Dividend {0)
AtMarch 31,2024 {3,51,186)
Profit for the year (1,39,348)

hensive income {405)
(4,80,939)
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TYRESNMORE ONLINE PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for year ended 31 March, 2025

Note 13: Borrowings

(Xin thousands)

Non-current Current maturities
Particulars Asat Asat As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Secured
Term loans
Indian rupee loan from banks
Vehicle loan - HDFC Bank Limited 384 = 157 R
384 - 157 E

L
pany obtained a Commercial Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank Limited at an annual interest rate of 9%, secured by the hypothecation of the vehicle.
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TYRESNMORE ONLINE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for year ended 31 March, 2025

Note 14: Provisions

Refer note 2.16 for accounting policy on Provisions (%in ds)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non-current provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for compensated absences (Refer foot note a) 2,502 1,713
Provision for gratuity (Refer foot note b) 6,384 4574
8,886 6,287
Current provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for compensated absences (Refer foot note a) 319 195
Provision for gratuity {(Refer foot note b) 544 226
864 421

a) Provision for compensated absences

Employee' leaves are encashed as per the Company's leave encashment policy. A provision has been recognised for leave encashment

liability based on the actuarial valuation of leave balance of employees as at year end.

Mo tin provision for p d absences
As at March 31, 2023

Additions during the year

Utilised during the year

As at March 31, 2024

Additions during the year

Utilised during the year

As at March 31, 2025

b) Provision for Gratulty

(% In thousands)

822
1,137
(51)
1,908
913

2,821

A provision has been recognised for gratuity liability based on the actuarial valuation of number of years of employment of employees as at

year end.
Movement in provision for Gratuity (T in thousands)
As at March 31, 2023 3,105
Additions during the year 1,902
Utilised during the year (207)
As at March 31, 2024 4,800
Additions during the year 2,128
Utilised during the year -
As at March 31, 2025 6,929
Note 15: Trade payables
[% In thousands)

Particulars . ASiek

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprise and small enterprises (refer foot note a):
Overdue e -
Not due 1,491 -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises:
Trade payables 34,754 24,798
Total 36,245 24,798
Notes

a) Disclosure required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (the MSMED Act) are given as follows #:

Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
i} The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting 1,491 .
)

year

ii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of accounting year

iii} The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006
along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day

during each accounting year
iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the year

v) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years,
ch date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises,

Page 31 of 46




C UG GUGGGGLEG

|

P T S S Y O S Y S S S S VR I VR S

TYRESNMORE ONLINE PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for year ended 31 March, 2025

As on 31-03-2025

Qutstandi

for following periods fron due date of payment

Trade Payables ageing as on 31-03-2025 Less than one year | 1-2 year | 2-3year| More than 3 years Total
Total custanding dues of MSME 1,491 = - . 1,491
Other than MSME Creditors 34,754 N . 2 34,754
Disputed dues of creditors other than MSME = - - = =
Total Trade Payables 36,245 - = w 36,245

As on 31-03-2024

Outstanding for following periods fron due date of payment

Trade Payables ageing as on 31-03-2024 Less than one year | 1-2 year | 2-3 year| More than 3 years Total
Total oustanding dues of MSME - - - =
Other than MSME Creditors 24,798 - - - 24,798
Disputed dues of creditors other than MSME - - - - .
Total Trade Payables 24,798 - - = 24,798

Note 16: Other financial Uabllitles

Refer note 2.11 for accounting policy on Other financial liabilitles

{%X In thousands)

. As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current
Employee related liabilities 1,230 1,231
Others 10,692 -
Total 11,822 1,231
Note 17: Other current liabilities (¥ in thousands)

. As at As at
RAmIcuas March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Statutory dues 1,386 1,086
Advance received from customers 379 273
Total 1,765 1,359
Note 18: Income taxes and deferred taxes
Refer note 2.5.2 for accounting policy on Deferred Tax
Balance Sheet (¥ In thousands)

Asat As at

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Non-current tax assets (net)
Current tax liabilitles (net)

Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes - 48
Others - 1,268
Deferred tax Asset 1,310 788
Deferred tax Asset 1,310 788
Statement of Profit and Loss
(% in thousands)

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Current tax - -

{405) (606)

{405) (608)
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TYRESNMORE ONLINE PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for year ended 31 March, 2025

Note 19: Revenue from operations

AT E E RN

I

SV O

)

Refer note 2.3 for accounting policy on Revenue Recognition (Tinth ds)
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Revenue recognised at the point of time
Sale of Goods & Services 3,22,573 2,49,748
Other revenues - 6,116
Total revenue 3,22,573 2,55,864
Revenue from operations 3,22,573 2,55,864
Note 20: Other Income
Refer note 2.3.4 for accounting policy on Revenue Recognition - Other Income (X in thousands)
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Interest income on
Bank deposits 731 419
Others 79 83
Other non-operating income 6
Total 815 502
Note 21: Purchase of stock-in-trade (Xin thousands)
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Purchase of Traded Goods 2,76,250 2,18,014
Total 2,76,250 2,19,014
Note 22: Changes In inventories of finlshed goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
Refer note 2.9 for accounting policy on Inventories (T in thousands)
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Opening Stock
Stock-in - trade 11,904 6,964
11,904 6,964
Closing Stock
Stock-in - trade 13,779 11,904
13,779 11,904
Total change in inventories (1,875) (4,940)
Note 23: Employee Benefit Expense
Refer note 2.17 for accounting policy on Employee benefits (X in thousands)
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Salaries, wages and bonus 72,544 62,766
Contribution to provident and other funds 2,423 2,186
Gratuity expenses 1,383 1,069
RSU - Share Based Payment 10,592 -
Staff welfare expenses 1,488 1,295
Total 88,429 67,316
Note 24: Finance costs
(T in thousands)
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Interest on debts and borrowings 384 240
Total 384 240
Note 25: Depreciation and amortization expenses
Refer note 2.6 for accounting policy on Depreciation and amortization expenses (% in thousands)
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,332 1,635
Amortisation of intangible assets 1,561 1,673
2,893 3,308
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TYRESNMORE ONLINE PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for year ended 31 March, 2025

Note 26: Other expenses

{X In thousands})

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
power and fuel 5,208 5,650
Freight and delivery charges 4,611 2,852
short-term and low value lease rent 1,555 425
Rent for premises 4,701 4,152
Rates and taxes 16 8
Insurance 295 299
Repairs and maintenance - Plant Machinery 2,223 2,071
Repairs and maintenance - Others 9,018 7,209
Travelling and conveyance 1,346 1,226
Printing and stationery 121 148
Payment to auditors (refer foot note 1) 1,102 939
Advertisement and sales promotion expenses 53,141 53,758
Communication expenses 476 449
Allowance for doubtful debts 135 811
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 248 -
Asset Discarded 579 -
Legal charges 222 415
Foreign exchange fluctuations 30 29
Professional and consultancy charges 5,788 3,123
Bank charges - Collection Charges 2,584 2,373
Miscellaneous expenses 3,777 3,199
Total 97,178 89,134
Notes:
1) Payment to audltors {X In thousands)
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
As auditor

Audit fee 400 500

Limited review -
In other capacity:

Other services (including certification fees) 402 416

Reimbursement of expenses - 23

Taxation Matters 300 =
Total payment to auditor 1,102 939
* Exclusive of Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Note 27: Earnings per share (‘EPS')
Refer note 2.15 for accounting policy on Earnings per share
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

X)

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

Profit after tax for calculation of basic and diluted EPS

Preference Share Dividend

Weighted average number of equity shares (face value per share X 1) in

calculating basic EPS and diluted EPS

Basic EPS (of face value of ¥ 1 each)
a P (of face value of ¥ 1 each)

(13,93,48,178)

(11,82,24,269)

4,63,153 3,89,174
(300.87) (303.78)
(327.40) (848.05)
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TYRESNMORE ONLINE PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025

Note: 28 Post Retirement Benefit plan

a) Defined contribution plan

s

Refer note 23 for company's contribution to defined contribution plans with respect to providend fund
and other funds.

b) Defined benefit plans - Gratuity

The Company’s obligation on account of gratuity, compensated absences and present value of gratuity
obligation are determined based on actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of
the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long-term nature, these liabilities are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.
All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate,
the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the
currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change
only at interval in response to demographic changes. Increase in future salary and gratuity is based on
expected future inflation rates. '

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the act, every employee who
has completed five years of service gets a gratuity on separation at 15 days of last drawn salary for each
completed year of service.

The following set out the amounts recognized in the Company’s financial statements as at March 31,
2025 and March 31, 2024.

i) Assets and Liability (Balance Sheet Position)

As on
Particulars — —_ -
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25

Present Value of Obligation 4,800,036 6,928,682
Fair Value of Plan Assets -
Surplus / (Deficit) (4,800,036) (6,928,682)
Effects of Asset Ceiling, if any

(4,800,036) (6,928,682)

Page 35 of 46




(“I

G @ @

U4 G

GG LU G

v ¢

TYRESNMORE ONLINE PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025

ii) Expenses Recognised during the year

For the period ending
Particulars -
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25
In Income Statement 1,296,247 1,723,368
in Other Comprehensive Income 606,199 405,278
Total Expenses Recognized during the period 1,902,446 2,128,646
iii) Changes in Present Value of Obligation
For the period ending
Particulars
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25
Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning 3,104,846‘ 4,800,036
Current Service Cost 1,069,112 1,382,807
Interest Expense or Cost 227,135 340,561
Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising
from:

- change in demographic assumptions - -

- change in financial assumptions 83,467 285,782

- i i i.e. I i

expenerfce variance (i.e. Actual experience 522,732 119,496
vs assumptions)

- others =
Past Service Cost - -
Effect of change in foreign exchange rates - -
Benefits Paid (207,256) -
Transfer In / (Out) -

Effect of business combinations or disposals - -
Present Value of Obligation as at the end 4,800,036 6,928,682

iv) Bifurcation of Present Value of Obligation at the end of the year as per revised Schedule |1l of the

Companies Act, 2013

As on
Particulars
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25
Current Liability (Short term) 226,193 544,458
Non-Current Liability (Long term) 4,573,843 6,384,224
4,800,036 6,928,682

—hmt Value of Obligation
O
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TYRESNMORE ONLINE PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025

v) Expenses Recognised in the Income Statement

Particulars

For the period ending

31-Mar-24

31-Mar-25

Current Service Cost

1,069,112

1,382,807

Past Service Cost

Loss / {Gain) on settlement

Net Interest Cost / (Income) on the Net Defined
|Benefit Liability / {Asset)

227,135

340,561

Expenses Recognised in the Income Statement

1,296,247

1,723,368

vi) Other Comprehensive Income

Particulars

For the period ending

31-Mar-24

31-Mar-25

Actuarial (gains) / losses

- change in demographlic assumptlons

- change in financial assumptions

83,467

285,782

~experience variance {l.e. Actual experience vs
assumptions)

522,732

119,496

- others

Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised

in net interest expense

Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain)/loss arising
because of change in effect of asset celling

Componaents of definad benafit costs recognised in
other comprehensive income

606,199

405,278

vii) The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity and leave encashment for the

Company’s plan are shown below

a) Financial Assumptions

The principal financial assumptions used in the valuation are shown in the table below:

As on
Particulars
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25
Discount rate (per annum) 7.10% 6.60%
Salary growth rate (per annum) 10.00% 10.00%

The discount rate indicated above reflects the estimated timing and currency of benefit payments. It is based on the
yields / rates available on applicable bonds as on the current valuation date.

The salary growth rate indicated above is the Company's best estimate of an increase in
ars, determined cansidering the general trend In inflation, senority, promotions,
tors such as demand and supply In employment market, etc.

salary of the employees in
past experience and other
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TYRESNMORE ONLINE PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025

b) Demographic Assumptions

The principal demographic assumptlons used in the valuation are shown in the table below:

As on

Particulars

31-Mar-24

31-Mar-25

Mortality rate

100% of 1ALM 2012-14

100% of IALM 2012-14

Above 44 years

Normal retirement age S8 Years 58 Years
Attrition / Withdrawal rates, based on Age: (per
annum)
Up to 30 years 10.64% 10.64%
31 - 44 years 17.86% 17.86%
0.00% 0.00%

Attrition rate Indicated above represents the Company's best estimate of employee turnover In future (other than on
account of retirement, death or disablement) determined considering various factors such as nature of business,

retention policy, industry factors, past experience, etc.

vii) Sensitivity analysis of the defined benefit obligation

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25
Particulars
Dacrease Increase Dacrease Increase

Discount Rate (- / + 1%) 5,253,962 4,406,798 7,567,146 6,378,446
{% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 9.5% -8.2% 9.2% -7.9%
Salary Growth Rate (- / + 19%) 4,525,512 5,112,323 6,536,342 7,375,908
{% change compared to base due to sensitivity) -5.7% 6.5% -5.7% 6.5%
Attrition Rate (- / + 50% of attrition rates) 5,601,452 4,357,625 8,115,411 6,351,413
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 16.7% -9.2% 17.1% -8.3%
Mortality Rate (- / + 10% of mortality rates) 4,800,018 4,800,053 6,928,674 6,928,690

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Page 38 of 46



hod

™ ]

JOUUUQGUGUUOQ‘JUGQUU‘-QGG-OQQOQ&UQ‘

TYRESNMORE ONLINE PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: Investment Risk, Interest Risk,
Demographic Risk and Salary Risk.

Risk Exposure

The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fallin interest rates. A
fifanest fallin interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate cost of
fere providing the above benefit and will thus resultin an increase in the

value of the liability (as shown in financial statements).

The probability or likelihood of occurrence of losses relative to the
Investment

expected return on any particular investment.

Demographic

The Company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions
in valuation of the liability. The Company is exposed to the risk of
actual experience turning out to be worse compared to the
assumption.

Salary Escalation

The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the
assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in future.
Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan
participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the
present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan's liability.

Asset Liability Mismatching
or Market Risk

The duration of the liability is longer compared to duration of assets,
exposing the Company to market risk for volatilities/fall in interest

rate.

Regulatory Risk

|

Gratuity benefit is paid in accordance with the requirements of the
Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (as amended from time to tin'we).
There is a risk of change in regulations requiring higher gratuity
payouts {e.g. Increase inthe maximum limit on gratuity of Rs.
20,00,000).
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TYRESNMORE ONLINE PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025

Compensated absences

The following set out the amounts recognized in the Company’s financial statements as at March 31,
2025 and March 31, 2024. g

Balance Sheet

i) Net Assets / (Liability) as at year end

As on
Particulars
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25
Present Value of Obligation 1,908,074 2,821,178
Fair Value of Plan Assets - -
Surplus / {Deficit) (1,908,074) (2,821,178)
Effects of Asset Ceiling, if any =
Net Asset / (Liability) (1,908,074) (2,821,178)

ii) Bifurcation of Present Value of Obligation at the end of the year as per revised Schedulelll of the

O OV Y VU VY U @ VW U @ Y @ @ L UG @ U UL @

v

Companies Act, 2013
As on
Particulars
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25
Current Liability (Short term) 195,055 319,129
Non-Current Liahility {Long term) 1,713,019 2,502,049
Present Value of Obligation as at the end 1,908,074 2,821,178
Flnancial Assumptions
The principal financial assumptions used in the valuation are shown in the table below:
As on
Particulars
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25
Discount rate {per annum} 7.10% 6.60%
Salary growth rate (per annum) 10.00% 10.00%

The discount rate indicated above reflects the estimated timing and currency of benefit payments. It is based on the
yields / rates available on applicable bonds as on the current valuation date.

The salary growth rate indicated above is the Company's best estimate of an increase in salary of the employees in
re years, determined considering the general trend in inflation, senority, promotions,

past experience and other

Page 40 of 46



B

QU UV IVUVIUVDIELGUELPOYVWIILLEOLOL WOOBUWLGLLGEEO

»0 00

U

g

'

TYRESNMORE ONLINE PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025

Demographic Assumptions

The principal demaographic ass

umptions used in the valuation are shown in the table below:

Ason

Particulars

31-Mar-24

31-Mar-25

Mortality Rate

100% of 1ALM 2012-14

100% of IALM 2012-14

annum)

Normal retirement age 58 years 58 years
Attrition / Withdrawal rates, based on Age: (per
annum)
Up to 30 years 10.64% 10.64%
31 - 44 years 17.86% 17.86%
Above 44 years 0.00% 0.00%
Rate of Leave Availment (per annum) 0.00% 0.00%
Rate of Leave Encashment during employment {per 0.00% oI5

Sensitivity Analysls

Significant actuarial assumptions for the deteminati
and mortality. The sensitivity analysis below have
assumptions occurring at the end of t

of sensitivity analysis is given below:

he reporting period, whil

on of the leave liability a

re discount rate, expected salary increase

been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the
e halding all other assumptions constant. The results

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25
present Value of Obligation (Base) 1,908,074 2,821,178
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25
Particulars
Decrease increase Decrease increass
Discount Rate (- / + 1%%) 2,075,745 1,763,045 3,076,010 2,602,184
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 8.8% -7.6% 9.0% -7.8%
salary Growsth Rate (- [+ 1%) 1,765,402 2,069,419 2,606,667 3,065,134
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) -7.5% 8.5% -7.5% 2.6%
Attrition Rate (- / + 50% of attrition rates) 2,124,686 1,805,192 3,209,239 2,632,996
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 11.4% -5.4% 13.8% -6.7%
Mortality Rate (- / + 10% of mortality rates) 1,908,909 1,907,242 2,822,682 2,819,680
sge compared to base due to sensitivity) 0.0% 0.0% 0.1% -0.1%
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) Notes to financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025
\\3 Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation
b \, l;ishted average duration {based on discounted cashflows) I 8 years 4‘
i ‘3 Expectad cash flows over the next (valuad on undiscounted basis): indian Rupees (INR)
.9 1 year 319,129
\3 2to S years 1,107,379
] & to 10 years 1,241,111
o More than 10 years 3,006,111
3 Note 29;: Commitments and contingencies
. 4 A. Contingent Liabilities
9 (% in thousands)
9 Particulars 31-03-2025 31-03-2024
indirect Tax Matters — Goods
3 and Services Tax (FY 2017-18) 398 398
Delhi
2 5 Tax 189 189
Interest 189 189
N ’* Penalty 20 20
9
B. Commitments
9
(X in thousands)
9 Particulars 31-03-2025 31-03-2024
Estimated amount of contracts
, remaining to be executed on
capital account and not - 679
9 provided for (net of advance
payments)
S
9 Note 30: Related party transactions
= " a) Names of related parties and related party relationship
, Retated parties with whom transactions have taken place during the current year and previous year
Relationship type Name of related party Changesin Date of change
-4 relationship
‘ Holding Company CEAT Limited NA NA
2 Director Kunjan Ravindranath Chikhlikar NA NA
{ ” Director Amit Suresh Tolani NA NA
L Director Anupam Kumar NA NA
. A anagerial Personnel Rajeshwar Wadhera NA NA
)
| o
»
)
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TYRESNMORE ONLINE PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025

b) The following transactions were carried out during the year with the related parties in the ordinary
course of business:
(% in thousands)

Transactions Related Party 2024-25 2023-24
. . Prithi Pal Singh
Rent paid on office space Relative of Director - 1,518
Remuneration- Directors Sumit Pal Singh, Director - 1,938
Remuneration- Key Managerial Rajeshwar Wadhera - CEO 8,320 8,411
Personnel
t-
gEvSharE ba§ed payment - Key Rajeshwar Wadhera - CEO - 607
Managerial Personnel
Purchase of Traded Goods CEAT Limited 43,949 59,820
Services CEAT Limited - 70
Advance CEAT Limited - 42,600
Investment by CEAT Limited
Issue of Equity Shares CEAT Limited 90,29 1,04,914
Conversion of existing Convertible .
Preference Shares to Equity Shares CEAT Limited ) OTE
Issue of fresh Convertible Preference CEAT Limited i 89,939
Shares
c) Balance outstanding at the year end
(% in thousands)
Related As at As at
Amount due to / from related party Party March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
CEAT Limited 16,114 13,632
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TYRESNMORE ONLINE PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025

d) Transactions with key management personnel and their relatives

(% in thousands)

] As at As at
2 Related Party March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Mr. Rajeshwar Wadhera
Salaries 8,228 7,236
Allowances and perquisites - -
1 Performance bonus - 1,100
Contribution to provident fund 92 75
RSU Share based payment - 607
Total 8,320 9,019
Mr. Sumit Pat Singh (Director)
Salaries - 1,938
Allowances and perquisites - -
2 Performance bonus
Contribution to provident fund - -
Dividend - -
Total - 1,938
Mr. Prithi Pal Singh
3 Rent paid - 1,518
Total - 1,518
[ Grand Total 8,320 12,474

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sales to and purchases and other transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalentto
those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and

interest free and settlement occurs in casi.

The issuance of 73,979 fresh Equity Shares, allotted during the year were allotted, at the fair market
value, basis the valuation taken from independent valuer, at arms' length.

The remuneration to the key managerial personnel does not include the provisions made for gratuity as it
is determined on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole.

Managerial remuneration is computed as per the provisions of section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013.
The amount outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash.

@J)UU@UOOUUUUOOQUUO‘{000000@‘

Note 31: Other Statutory Information

» i) Th . ,
Ll {0 i Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending
) against the Company for holding any Benami property
Hdlhe C . ’
ompany do not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of
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TYRESNMORE ONLINE PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025
(iii) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yetto be registered with ROC beyond
1

the statutory period

(iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency/orVirtual Currency during the financial
year.
« (v) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

whatsoever by oron behalf
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

aaoawquuuuouuuecouooow@@@@ééeu

(vi) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company

shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
ide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(b) prov
(vii) The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that
has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Note 32: Segment Reporting

As the Companies business trading activities fall under single business segment, hence (IND AS) 108 - Operating

Segments is not applicable on the Company.

Note 33: No Significant adjusting event occurred between balance sheet date and the date of the approval of these
financial statements by the board of directors requiring adjustment on disclosures.

Note 34: Employee Stock Options (ESOP)

As per the provisions of Section 62 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 (4)(b) of the Companies (Share
Capital and Debenture) Ruies, 2014 and any other rules, regulations and guidelines of any / various statutory/
regulatory authorities) that are or may become applicable and subjectto such approvals, permissions and
sanctions of various authorities) as may be required and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be
prescribed or imposed while granting such approvals, permissions and sanctions, the consent of the members of
Company be and hereby accords to grant employee stock options to identified employee as defined (Total ESOP
granted- 34,731), during any one year, equal to or exceeding one per cent of the issued capital of the company at the

time of grant of option on such terms and conditions as mentioned in the TYRESNMORE ONLINE EMPLOYEES

==
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Note 36: Ratio analysis a

Current ratie

e
Debt- Equity Ratio

]

Return on Equity ratio

nd its elements

NE PRIVATE LIMITED

oryear ended March 31, 2025

es are re grouped/re arranged where ever necessary to confirm to the layout of

/

Current Assets

Reason for varlance

Net Profits/lass after

-

Inventory Turnover ratio

Trade Receivable
Turnover Ratio

Trade Payable Turnover
Ratio

Net Capital Turnover
Ratio

Net Profit ratio

tax

Denominator 31-Mor-25 |31-Mar-24| % change
Lastyear Cash & cash
equivalents includes the
Current Liabilities 0.82 2.63 (68.80)%| share application money.
leading to drop in Current
Ratio
Shows a shift from no debt
Shareholder’s lastyearto a debt-equity
Debt 0.20 - 00%
Total De Equity B ratio of 0.20 indicating the
company has taken on dabr
While still negative, losses
e as a percentage of revenue
Shareholder’s -127% -216% {41.07)% pere
taxes Equit have slightly decreased,
S8 revenue improvements.
Average Inventory
f finished ds,
Costof goods sold | 2 finished goods 5.34 5.67 (5.84)%
work-in-progress
and stock-in trade
T
Net sales Average Trade 11.29 13.78 (18.07)%
Receivable
Net credit purchases = Average Trade 2.26 2.14 5.89 %
Purchases Payables
reduction in working capitat
Working capital = (Current Assets - Current
Net sales = Total sales | ¢, ont assets - 48464 5.64 8486.72%| Liabilities), driven by the
sales return Lo i
Current liabilities sharp decrease in the
current ratio.
Net Profit/(loss) after Revenue_ from 43% _46% (6.77)%
operations

As per our report attached

ForV.S. Somani & Co.,

Chartered Accountants

ICAI FRN - 117589W

CA Vidyadhar Somani

Proprietor

Membership No. 102664

Place: Mumbai
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Director
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